



Transparency report 2018

Grant Thornton Bedrijfsrevisoren

For the year ended 31 December 2018



Contents

| Section | Page |
|--|------|
| A message from our CEO | 04 |
| Introduction | 06 |
| Legal structure & governance | 07 |
| Grant Thornton International | 80 |
| Quality control | 11 |
| Independence and regulatory compliance | 14 |
| Independence practices | 15 |
| Our Audit methodology | 16 |
| Communicating our audit findings | 18 |
| Monitoring activities | 19 |
| Embracing external monitoring of | |
| Audit & Assurance activities | 20 |
| Responding to reviews | 21 |
| Statement of the firm's internal quality | |
| control systems | 22 |
| Financial information | 23 |
| Public interest entities | 23 |
| Contact details | 24 |



A message from our CEO

Over the last 12 months, we've met with hundreds of our clients to talk about their business environment in all its forms. We've heard their stories and understand the opportunities and challenges that exist for their businesses.

The pace of change and its impact on their operations is increasingly significant. Technology evolution and the pressure to operate in a much more sustainable way is disrupting traditional business practices. On top, (geo-)political, regulatory and demographic disruption makes the environment even more complex to operate in. To which extent will all these disruptions influence the worldwide economic environment?

Governance, and a business culture with the customer at its heart, is now essential for success.

As a business we are continually evolving and improving to help meet the needs of our clients, along with our requirements as a growing and truly international firm, maintaining a culture of quality in our work as we move forward.

Though while we adapt and evolve, our values and vision remain unchanged and we continue to strive to be the preferred trusted advisor to all our clients. As full-service business advisors, we also recognise the different objectives when dealing with listed companies and other public interest entity audit clients. Whether you are a business leader, SME, multinational or government institution, we at Grant Thornton Belgium truly understand your business.

Our multidisciplinary teams do have a clear mission. We provide you with pragmatic and personalized advice that makes your life easier and enables you to really focus on your core business and growth opportunities.

We offer creative and tailor-made solutions at very high expert level, always guaranteeing the best value for money.



⁴ Transparency report 2018

Year in review

Our clients

We've made it our business to understand our clients and take a hands-on and practical approach to the design and delivery of our services. Above all, we've remained committed to delivering the best outcomes and work with our clients to ensure success and growth of their business.

This focus has resulted in more dedicated time out of the office and in front of clients – participating in business growth conversations, surveying clients and supporting the pursuit of new clients.

Digital transformation

To deliver a compelling client experience, we focused on hardwiring our client-centric approach into our systems to ensure national consistency, efficiency and collaboration for the benefit of our clients.

The firm has invested significantly in upgrading its technology, including financial management systems and an overall Grant Thornton group audit-platform.

Our people are now connected through Skype for Business and a unified phone solution is also being implemented in the next months.

Flexibility and agility

Along with our digital transformation, Grant Thornton Belgium focused on the space in which we work. This resulted in new premises for our Brussels colleagues, where we now work in an agile, collaborative environment. The far-reaching flexibility in the new working environment encourages cross-pollination between our different departments.

The shift to agile is about empowering our people to work in an environment that enables them to be most productive.

Importantly, the new agile workspace is designed to help deliver a compelling client experience and distinctive people experience.

Diversity

At Grant Thornton Belgium, we encourage our people to bring their whole selves to work. We recognise, appreciate and harness our people's individual skills and talents. This approach helps us create a strong and dynamic organisation. We treat everyone fairly and never discriminate on the basis of ethnicity, race, religious belief (or lack thereof), sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or intersex status, pregnancy, family or carer's responsibilities, marital status, age or disability. Beyond that we celebrate the breadth of knowledge, skills and experience, and diversity of perspective that people bring to Grant Thornton Belgium.

Overall, I'm really proud of what we've achieved over the last 12 months, and look forward to the year ahead.

Koert Verbruggen CEO, Grant Thornton Belgium

Introduction

We are pleased to share our Transparency Report for Grant Thornton Bedrijfsrevisoren (hereafter "Grant Thornton"). We welcome the opportunity to share the information contained in this Transparency Report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Grant Thornton's Audit & Assurance practice operates with one central principle: to deliver audits of the highest quality for the benefit of our clients and the wider business community.

Transparency and audit quality are cornerstones of Grant Thornton's values and governance practices. This report is a public statement of our commitment to good corporate governance and ongoing, transparent communication with our stakeholders: our people, clients, audit committees, regulators and the wider public. We provide quality assurance services to organizations in Belgium and around the globe. This report sets out how we comply with the requirements of article 23 of the Law of 7 December 2016 to organize the profession of and the public surveillance on the registered auditors, as well as the steps we have taken to drive audit quality across our business.

The company continues to firmly believe that sustainable business success depends on its people and corporate culture. Therefore, we are constantly investing in the professional growth of our executives, as well as adopting new technological trends and continuing to implement ideas and initiatives with a significant impact on society. Making the best use of our key competitive advantage, i.e. the experience we offer to our client, and our constant tendency to develop both - our company and our customers - we prioritize improvement of audit procedures, methodology and technology applied by our executives.

At Grant Thornton, we believe that our people constitute our most significant asset. Consequently, we invest in their growth, placing them at the heart of our global strategy.

Focused on the unique experience we offer to our customers and maintaining our commitment to sustaining their trust, we continue to act with transparency and integrity, regularly communicating with the relevant regulatory bodies, investors, businesses and all stakeholders, thus reinforcing our responsibility as far as rendering assurance services is concerned, and helping them to unlock their potential for growth.



Ria Verheyen

Head of Independence & Quality Control

Gunther Loits

Head of Audit & Assurance

Legal structure & governance

Grant Thornton Bedrijfsrevisoren is a cooperative limited liability company. Together with Grant Thornton Accountants en Belastingconsulenten it is part of the network of Grant Thornton in Belgium.

Legal structure and capital

The company is a cooperative limited liability company. Its enterprise number is BE 0439.814.826.

The issued capital amounts to €46.725, represented by 750 A shares, 18 B shares and 12 C shares.

Governance

Grant Thornton Bedrijfsrevisoren is part of a national structure organized around the legal entity Grant Thornton Belgium.

The daily management is executed by a Management Committee consisting of 5 members and presided by Koert Verbruggen.

The Board of Directors is the body that determines the strategy and the policy rules and that ensures that the necessary corporate governance structures are at hand. The Board of Directors also monitors ethical rules of conduct and promotes a culture of corporate and social responsibility. Furthermore, the Board of Directors assesses the risks faced by the organization in the course of its operations and ensures that the rules and applicable agreements are properly observed.

The Board of Directors bears the (final) responsibility for the quality control policy, for setting up and observing the quality control system.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board members of Grant Thornton Bedrijfsrevisoren CVBA were:

- Paul De Weerdt
- Geert Lefebvre
- Karel Nijs
- Ria Verheyen
- Koert Verbruggen



Grant Thornton International

Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL) is a private company limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales. It is a non-practising international umbrella entity that does not provide services to clients.

Grant Thornton member firms around the world deliver services to clients. GTIL has more than 135 member firms. Each member firm is a separate legal entity. Membership of the global network does not make any firm responsible for the services or activities of other member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another's acts and omissions. Member firms carry the Grant Thornton name, either exclusively or as part of their national practice names.

Governance

Board of Governors

The Board of Governors (the Board) is the principal and overriding authority in GTIL. The Board exercises governance over GTIL and comprises the chair of the Board; the chief executive officer of GTIL (CEO); managing partners from the largest Grant Thornton member firms; managing partners elected or appointed from other Grant Thornton member firms that are not amongst the largest; and independent directors.

The Board aims for a reasonable balance of diversity and representation from different geographical areas, including emerging markets. The Board's responsibilities include:

- approving global strategic direction and policies
- overseeing the implementation of the global strategy
- overseeing membership matters (including approving new member firms, suspending the rights of a member firm, or expelling a member firm)
- appointing and setting the remuneration of the chair of the Board
- appointing, evaluating performance and setting the remuneration of the CEO
- approving the GTIL budget and member firm fees
- overseeing the financial health of GTIL
- overseeing global enterprise risk management
- overseeing general governance matters, such as the composition and performance of the Board.

Chair of the Board

The chair of the Board (the Chair) is a proactive role with a focus on ensuring that the Board functions as a coordinated group in support of the CEO to deliver on the global strategy. Scott Barnes was appointed Chair as of 1 January 2015 for a term of three years. In December 2017, the Board reappointed Scott for an additional term of two years. The role of the Chair is pivotal to creating the conditions necessary for a highly effective Board focused on the Grant Thornton network's global strategic development.

The Board of Governors as of 1 January 2018

- Scott Barnes, Chair
- Peter Bodin, CEO
- Pascal Boris, independent member*
- Vishesh Chandiok, India
- Maria Victoria C. Españo, Philippines
- Hisham Farouk, United Arab Emirates
- Gagik Gyulbudaghyan, Armenia
- Arnaldo Hasenclever, Argentina
- Xu Hua, China
- Emilio Imbriglio, Canada (observer)
- Anna Johnson, Sweden
- Vassilis Kazas, Greece
- Greg Keith, Australia
- Daniel Kurkdjian, France
- Kevin Ladner, Canada
- Mike McGuire, United States
- Joachim Riese, Germany
- Sacha Romanovitch, United Kingdom
- Judith Sprieser, independent member.

*term ended in March 2018

Independent Board members

Independent Board members bring a valuable external business perspective to the deliberations of the Board, add to the network's profile and increase Board transparency.

Independent Board members support the network's recognition of its public interest responsibilities and its attitude towards quality, risk management and governance, as well as the network's effectiveness in executing its strategic goals and market positioning. GTIL has processes in place to ensure that the appointment of independent Board members and their ongoing services are compliant with relevant independence rules.

Standing committees

There are six standing committees with authority and powers for certain matters as delegated to them by the Board.

- Governance Committee (GC): ensures efficient and effective operation and oversight of GTIL's leadership structures and performance
- Strategy Committee (SC): advises on the development, alignment and execution of the global strategy
- **Budget and Audit Committee (BAC)**: oversees the GTIL budget and audit processes to ensure the successful execution of the global strategy and adherence to the fiduciary responsibilities of GTIL
- Member Firm Matters Committee (MFMC): considers and determines resolution of recommendations made by the global leadership team relating to member firm matters. Considerations include member firm terminations, complaint handling and proposed changes to the rules and agreements that materially affect member firms.
- Enterprise Risk Management Committee (ERMC): has oversight responsibility for ensuring an appropriate enterprise risk management framework is maintained for GTIL and its member firms

• **CEO Compensation Committee (CEOCC):** executes the Board's responsibilities relating to the annual performance evaluation and related compensation of the CEO, the adoption of policies that govern the CEO's compensation and performance, and the oversight of plans for CEO development.

The use of standing committees allows a more efficient and effective discharge of the Board's responsibilities and involves others in the activities of the Board. Each standing committee is chaired by a Board member and its membership includes, but is not limited to, Board members.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The CEO is appointed by the Board for an initial term of up to five years renewable once for a further period of up to three years. Ed Nusbaum's role as CEO came to an end as of 31 December 2017. In 2017, the Board appointed Peter Bodin, formerly the CEO of the Swedish member firm, to be the GTIL CEO for a term of five years, as of 1 January 2018.

The CEO is responsible for the leadership of GTIL. The role of the CEO includes the development and recommendation of global strategic priorities for ratification by the Board, together with overseeing execution of these priorities. The CEO has responsibility for appointing the global leadership team (GLT), subject to the concurrence of the Board. The GLT assists the CEO in the execution of the global strategy. The CEO works closely with the GLT in maintaining global policies and procedures, including those governing international work for the assurance, tax and advisory service lines.



Management

Global Leadership Team (GLT)

The GLT develops and drives the execution of the global strategy and is chaired by the CEO. It is a full-time management group dedicated to leading the network in the successful execution of the strategy. Between them, GLT members have global development, service lines, functional and regional responsibilities.

A critical role of the GLT is to work with member firms in driving the execution of the global strategy. Our ambition is to be known throughout the world as the leading adviser to dynamic organisations by 'unlocking the potential for growth' in our people, clients and communities and to become the next generation professional services network.

Our Growing Together 2020 global strategy focuses on:

- our people
- our clients
- our markets and communities
- our organisation

It sets out how Grant Thornton will achieve its vision and identifies the actions Grant Thornton will take. The implementation of the strategy builds on strategic frameworks, prioritised investments and growth strategies that are appropriate for our chosen markets.

We care about the work we do for clients, the impact we have in society and the way we treat people. And, as dedicated professionals, our work and influence build trust and integrity in the markets in which we work. We help create the commercial and social environments that enable long-term success and growth for businesses and where people flourish. We do this because we are committed to shaping a vibrant economy.



Quality control

Grant Thornton's ongoing commitment to Audit Quality and Transparency.

Grant Thornton views the core of audit quality as using the best practices, procedures and judgement at our disposal to reach the right audit opinion for our clients and stakeholders. This means maintaining independence, complying with Belgian and global laws and audit standards, and putting forward impartial recommendations and appropriate insights to our clients.

Our firm's culture

A strong and inclusive organisational culture is the first step to conducting a rigorous, quality audit in which our clients and stakeholders can have confidence.

Demonstrating leadership in all we do

Grant Thornton aims to lead the audit and assurance profession in Belgium with its focus on quality.

Our people are leaders in their chosen fields. They do this by contributing to the development of the profession through membership of working groups, as well as through teaching positions at Belgium's leading universities and highschools.

Promoting a consistent culture of excellence

Grant Thornton's six global values – Collaboration, Leadership, Excellence, Agility, Respect, and Responsibility (CLEARR) – form the foundation of our approach to audit quality. Alongside our signature behaviours, this framework inspires our people across our entire business.

Uniting through global collaboration

Our firm's global scale allows us to tap into a network of experts from all corners of the world. We have international network agreements in place, giving us the tools to consult widely with:

- Grant Thornton International's global audit methodology team
- Audit specialists in other member firms
- Our financial reporting help desk
- Industry specialists around the world.

A comprehensive internal online network equips our people with information on the latest global developments on auditing, financial reporting, ethics and independence standards, as well as guidance on applying these reforms effectively. We understand that our clients and wider stakeholders often have differing demands of our Audit & Assurance engagement teams, though all parties have a common need: a demand for excellence.

A consistent culture of excellence is an important element of how we think and what we do. Our culture of excellence involves employing strong client acceptance and continuance systems and processes, aligned with the relevant legislative requirements and Grant Thornton International's protocols.

Our audit consultation and risk monitoring activities help drive quality in our work, ensuring clients and the wider market receive a world-class assurance product from our engagement teams.

Acting with agility and ensuring deep respect for people

The audit and assurance landscape is changing, with advancements in technology and the rapid emergence of disruptive industries. In line with the transformations around us, Grant Thornton has shown the commitment to the continued professional education and training of all our people, fostering a culture of agility, adaptability, innovation and respect for each team member's strengths. We do this by making full use of our resources, including:

- Global, national and local training, delivered both face-toface and online
- Regular firm-wide and industry and/or service line-specific communications
- National support staff and industry experts sharing knowledge across offices.

Taking responsibility for our actions

Grant Thornton recognises our wider impact on our clients and stakeholders. We act with integrity, openness and accountability to stay true to our purpose and behave in a way that is consistent with our values. In Audit & Assurance, we demonstrate this commitment to our responsibilities through strong ethical practices promoted with consistent messages, including:

- Annual ethics and independence training
- Our Audit and Risk & Compliance 'Alert' programs
- National bulletins and technical training.

Delivering and measuring audit quality

Audit quality is an essential element of Grant Thornton's business. We pride ourselves on our commitment to continuous improvement in quality and service delivery. We respect the trust that our clients place in Grant Thornton. To maintain this trust, we have a stringent quality control system in line with the high bar of legal and professional requirements both in Belgium and abroad.

Supervision, consultation and review

A strong culture where our people can exchange feedback and consult with one another on challenging issues is essential to a successful and high-quality audit engagement. We embed this throughout our audit methodology, to provide the right level of quality control and support for audit engagement teams.

We make use of our extensive resources, in line with the requirements of the International Standards of Quality Control (ISQC1), including:

- Engagement quality control reviewers (EQCR) on listed and other Public Interest Entities and other specified engagements
- Experienced support partners on higher-risk engagements
- Technical specialists (e.g. valuations, IT audit, taxation)
- Industry specialists (international)
- The Audit Quality team
- The Client Acceptance team.

This synergy of experience and technical ability – coupled with our culture of constructively challenging each other – ensures quality and rigour in all stages of the audit.

Professional development as a priority

Our Audit & Assurance practice prioritises maintaining and improving the skills and technical competencies of all our people, ensuring we meet all professional and legal benchmarks. We take pride in reinforcing the need for broad business insights, technical excellence, audit quality, critical thinking, and ethical behaviours in all team members, from induction through to continuous learning programs. Applying technical expertise is a key competency which is reviewed during our six-monthly Performance Inspiring Conversations, together with team members' personal development plans.

Within Audit & Assurance, our people have access to firmdelivered and external learning on financial reporting, company law, ethics and auditing matters. This is in addition to the annual and quarterly technical updates the entire team receives.

We make full use of the resources at our disposal to maintain a culture of robust client acceptance, and quality of work at all stages of an audit. These resources include:

- Client continuance systems aligned with Belgian legislative and regulatory requirements as well as Grant Thornton International's stringent protocols and audit methodology, supported by a globally utilised state-of-the-art software suite
- Policies and procedures in our audit guidance material benchmarked against stringent international auditing regulations and standards
- Regular ethics and independence training, Audit and Risk & Compliance 'Alert' programs and national bulletins and technical training
- Mechanisms to monitor quality and our supporting risk management methodology

Before the audit - engagement acceptance and continuance

An important part of audit quality is the right choice of clients. Grant Thornton employs a rigorous client engagement acceptance and continuance policy, taking into account risk, complexity and specialised experience requirements.

Looking at potential and new engagements

We assess each potential and current audit engagement, assigning them to a risk category to help drive additional quality control procedures where required.

In the case of high-profile engagements, such as listed and other Public Interest Entities, the Client Acceptance team, headed by the Independence and Quality partner, must review and approve the proposed engagements. In certain exceptional circumstances, we will also consult with and obtain approval from our colleagues at Grant Thornton International.

Solutions following client acceptance

If we identify weaknesses in governance and internal control systems during the audit, we work with clients to identify and recommend actions for improvement. We run through a similar annual process for continuance of an engagement. If we identify significant changes in circumstances (such as intention to become a listed entity) or if other risk indicators are present, we require the Client Acceptance team to review and approve the engagement before our teams proceed with the audit.

Corporate governance and engagement continuance

A client's corporate governance and the robustness of its financial reporting system are critical to an effective audit.

Any concerns we identify about a client's corporate governance through our client acceptance and continuance procedures need careful consideration to determine whether or not we act for that client.



Independence and regulatory compliance

Independence from an audit and assurance client is paramount to a successful engagement, both in legal and ethical terms.

When accepting an audit client, Grant Thornton's strict policies and processes safeguard us from providing prohibited services.

Grant Thornton people assigned to an engagement must adhere to:

- The independence rules prescribed by Article 23 of the Law of 7 December 2016, and Article 13 of the Regulation (EU) $N^{\circ}\,537/2014$
- Professional standards and codes
- Relevant foreign legislation and regulations
- Grant Thornton's internal policies, including declarations that team members are free from prohibited financial interests in – and relationships with – a client, its management, partners and significant owners.

Using Grant Thornton International's independence framework

In keeping with best practice, we adopt Grant Thornton International's global policies, designed to safeguard independence on assurance engagements and identify circumstances that could pose a conflict of interest.

Our firm's global independence policies and procedures are based on the International Ethics Standards Board's (IESBA) Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, with supplements to govern compliance with our global independence and international relationship checking processes.

We tailor our global independence policies to fit with local requirements, including those outlined in Article 23 of the Law of 7 December 2016, and Article 13 of the Regulation (EU) N° 537/2014.

Personal independence monitoring

We monitor personal independence through our Risk & Compliance Group and web-based Global Independence System (GIS). Controls are also built into our acceptance and continuance tool for non-audit services to make sure we consult and seek approval to provide these services. In cases where a conflict may arise, we consult the Engagement Partner on the audit to determine the appropriate safeguards and remove threats to independence or ethical concerns.

Partner rotation and other compliance monitoring

Where clients are registered organizations, we ensure that rotation and independence provisions are in line with the law.



Independence practices

Maintaining objectivity and independence of thought is vital to conserving Grant Thornton Belgium's reputation.

Grant Thornton has a strong system of independence and conflict checks, which is designed to identify potential conflicts of interest at the earliest possible juncture and deal with them appropriately.

Independence has particular meaning in the audit environment, but is equally relevant throughout the whole firm. Independence standards are clearly defined in our Independence Policy and Guidelines and in our Assurance Quality and Control Manual.

Independence compliance is monitored actively, and the firm, Partners and client facing managers are required to record their financial interests (and those of their immediate family members) in our automated tracking system, the Global Independence System (GIS).

Financial interests of the firm and its affiliated entities are also recorded in GIS. A list of the firm's audit clients with publicly-traded securities is maintained and can be accessed on the firm's intranet by all Grant Thornton people. Compliance with the independence policy by all of the firm's personnel is checked formally on an annual basis.

To maintain our objectivity when delivering services to clients, we have policies and procedures in place to identify any existing client, vendor, or business relationship with a prospective client or its affiliate prior to accepting the appointment. The nature and effectiveness of the firm's procedures for maintaining independence are under constant review. We obtain assurance about their operation from annual audits of user accounts in GIS, cold reviews of audit files and internal reviews of non-audit practice areas of the firm. Where weaknesses or breakdowns are revealed, appropriate corrective action is taken. Our procedures are designed effectively and are generally operating as intended.

We have joined other Grant Thornton member firms in adopting the Global Relationship System (GRS) – Grant Thornton International's independence system – an automated solution to aid collection and assessment of individual independence declarations. We have also enhanced our vendor risk assessment program which incorporates independence considerations, and delivered a new training format for all independence training.

Grant Thornton's GRS is a global web application that streamlines the International Relationship Check (IRC) process between Grant Thornton member firms and provides insight into client and business relationships worldwide, supporting the identification of cross border business development opportunities. This global relationship checking tool was rolled out to all Grant Thornton member firms during FY2018. It has facilitated the preparation, communication and workflow for international relationship check requests.

It provides a robust platform and includes regular processes for assessing potential threats to independence or conflicts of interest identified during client acceptance.

Continued or repeated failure by any GIS user to comply with their obligations will be subject to escalation to the CEO; this is in addition to the mandated sanctions for GIS noncompliance by Grant Thornton International. Breaches are also taken into account during Partner and team member performance evaluations.

Our audit methodology

Audit technology and Grant Thornton International's important role

Grant Thornton International assists all member firms in delivering consistent, rigorous and high-quality audits, achieved through a range of initiatives including:

- Global audit methodology and software
- Protocols to facilitate consultation with audit specialists in other member firms
- GTINet, our global data network with up-to-date information on relevant professional standards and global assurance guidance
- · Worldwide restricted entity list
- IFRS help desk and topical alerts.

Horizon, our global audit methodology and technology

Grant Thornton member firms make use of Grant Thornton International's Horizon* global audit methodology, implementing it through our Voyager* software suite. The Horizon global audit methodology equips member firms' Audit & Assurance teams with a clear link between:

- Financial reporting risks they identify
- Evaluating the entity's internal controls addressing the identified risk
- Audit procedures the engagement team performs that directly respond to the identified risks

This approach enables Grant Thornton Belgium's Audit & Assurance team to judge how the current environment affects a client's financial reporting and any risks identified.

It also gives the audit team a clear opportunity to design the appropriate audit response, maintaining ongoing dialogue with the client.

Our global audit methodology includes integrated quality control processes including policies and procedures for engagement quality control review. We benchmark these against ISA, ISQC and IESBA Regulations, Codes and Standards. We then apply the Horizon global audit methodology using our integrated Voyager suite of proprietary software tools.

The Voyager suite currently includes:

Voyager* – a tool for assisting audit teams to identify financial statement risks, and links to the processes and internal controls established to address those risks. Voyager also assists audit teams in documenting, evaluating and testing internal controls and designing an appropriate substantive response.

TBeam* – a trial balance and work paper generation tool fully integrated with Voyager, which allows audit teams to automatically update lead sheets for changes to the trial balance, perform analytical procedures, evaluate misstatements, and create standard and customised work papers.

Voyager Information System* (VIS) Tracking – an application that provides Grant Thornton member firms with the ability to view information about their assurance clients contained in Voyager files, manage and monitor concurring review policies, review and respond to technical consultations, control and monitor the archiving process for annual and interim periods, and control the storage and protection of archived Voyager files.

*Trademarks of Grant Thornton International

Using the Voyager suite, audit teams in all Grant Thornton International member firms achieve a common level of –and approach to – audit quality. Grant Thornton member firms produce a seamless audit product, regardless of whether one member firm performs the audit for local purposes or many member firms collaborate in the case of group engagements.

We supplement the Voyager suite with Grant Thornton International's Audit Manual (our guide to the overall global audit methodology), suggested formatting for working papers/ financial statements, checklists and practice aids – all regularly maintained by the NAQ team and available via our firm's internal network.

Grant Thornton International continually evaluates its audit methodology and software applications, and provides annually updated versions to member firms.



LEAP: Our new audit tool

Each year we invest further in audit methodology development, technology, training, communications and guidance towards the continuous improvement of service quality. In late 2017, we piloted a revised global methodology referred to as LEAP (Leading Effective Audit Practice), delivered through a new platform developed in partnership with Microsoft. A series of global learning programmes will be run nationally to drive adoption and engagement of this change.

Among other benefits, our revised methodology:

- Provides a clear link to auditing standards using the ISA based terms
- Applies an account-based approach to address the risk of material misstatement
- Allows the tailoring of audit risk and responses to each client

Our new audit platform tool:

- Offers flexibility and scalability to perform audits of all types and sizes
- Puts global and local methodology guidance at auditors' fingertips
- Allows for rapid responses to regulatory changes
- Enables auditors to perform high-quality audits more efficiently.
- Gives auditors the ability to provide clients with better insights into their business and operations

The tool user interface was designed based on extensive feedback gathered from auditors throughout the design and development process.

The global learning programmes developed to support these changes include the ISA proficiency series, methodology proficiency series, tool proficiency series, and Audit 360 simulation.

The ISA proficiency series includes various online modules focused primarily on the professional standards themselves. It is methodology agnostic as it is the foundation for all the other learning.

Communicating our audit findings

The Audit Planning Report and Audit Findings Report

Grant Thornton's audit process is not merely about issuing a standard audit report. We strive to enhance our clients' businesses – within regulatory guidelines – working to bridge the expectation gap between our audit process and how Audit Committees, Boards and those charged with governance understand those processes.

To succeed in this, we use tools such as the Audit Planning Report and Audit Findings Report, which provide clarity about topics including:

- The scope of our audit
- Identified threats and mitigations
- Key risks and judgements
- Emerging issues
- Regulatory changes
- Any other findings that must be communicated.

Factors affecting audit quality outside the control of auditors

On many occasions there are factors the engagement team cannot anticipate or control.

Making use of the engagement team's knowledge of the client's we can pinpoint factors outside the control of our audit process as risks within our audit tools. Our collaborative culture and internal processes ensure that engagement teams put in place the right responses to address these risks throughout the audit.

Some examples of factors outside the control of auditors that have the potential to affect audit quality include:

- The client's culture and their focus on financial reporting.
- The resources of the client's internal finance team and their Audit Committee.
- Quality, timeliness and availability of the client's financial information.
- Changes in the regulatory environment in which the client operates, including reporting deadlines.

Reporting to clients - the Audit Findings Report

Following extensive testing, analysis and use of professional judgement, our engagement teams report to clients using both the formal audit report (the audit report) – which is made public, and an internal Audit Findings Report.

This report outlines the primary considerations, judgements and results of our audit. The content and format is tailored to each client's needs, but all include:

- The scope and approach of our audit
- An explanation of any ethical or independence matters (including safeguards in place)
- Principal audit judgements
- An outline of any control weaknesses identified
- Insight into upcoming changes in reporting requirements or other relevant legislative/regulatory changes.

The audit reports for listed client engagements also contain a description of Key Audit Matters (KAMs) identified during the audit and procedures to address them.

As part of the drafting and finalisation of audit reports for listed entities, a qualified team conducts a comprehensive quality review of the description of identified KAMs and the ways in which the audit addressed each issue. This process ensures our Extended Audit Reports are comprehensive and understandable to investors, including those without a technical accounting background.

Monitoring activities

It is a common adage that continuous improvement is better than delayed perfection. Grant Thornton Belgium's Audit & Assurance practice takes on board the recommendations of all reviews – both internal and external – incorporating them into our plans for continually improving audit quality. We also monitor and respond to ongoing regulatory, industry and other developments in financial reporting and audit, further delivering improvements in the quality of our work.

Internal reviews

The National Assurance Quality team drives the Internal Quality Control Reviews (IQCR) process to assess the quality of completed audit work and its compliance with the firm's quality and risk management framework. The IQCRs are conducted over a two year rotation period to capture each Partner. The review teams are comprised of experienced Partners, Directors and Managers from other offices and the engagements selected are those that the Review Team Leader consider to be more complex or of higher risk.

The IQCR process tests the effectiveness of our quality controls in areas such as client acceptance, training, compliance with ethical standards and independence.

The findings from the IQCR process are then collated in our Root Cause Analysis to form part of our Audit quality action plan.

The NAQ team communicates thematic findings from the root cause analysis to the entire Audit & Assurance team through regular training sessions, workshops and technical updates. We make sure that areas for improvement are built into audit quality action plans.

During FY2018, Grant Thornton's internal quality inspection reviewed 5 engagement files.

Internal monitoring

Grant Thornton Belgium engages in ongoing monitoring programs, all with the aim of continually ensuring the strength of our quality framework and performance in addition to our IQCR process. These stringent internal monitoring policies include:

 Grant Thornton International Audit Review (GTAR) – last inspection, December 2017. Grant Thornton International reviewed 11 engagement files.

Internal Quality Control Review program

The firm's IQCR review program extends beyond the review of individual engagement files. The program assesses the design and implementation of firm policies and procedures, and how effectively they serve their purpose. It comprises a compliance review component to assess performance against relevant legislation, regulatory standards, industry codes and our own policies.

As an example, Grant Thornton member firms use the standardised Grant Thornton International ISQC 1 reporting mechanism to form a basis for internal reviews. Each member firm submits a final inspection report of its quality control system to Grant Thornton International for monitoring and follow-up.

This is in line with the requirements of the following standards:

- International Standard on Quality Control (ISQC 1), Quality Control for Firms That Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.
- International Standards on Auditing (ISA 220), Quality Control for Audits of Historical Financial Information.
- IESBA Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

Embracing external monitoring of Audit & Assurance activities

Engagement with regulators

The changing audit regulatory environment has a clear effect on the quality of audit and assurance work. Given this, Grant Thornton member firms maintain an open and constructive relationship with their national regulators, consistent with our global policy of embracing external oversight, along with our support of balanced public reporting of external inspection programs.

As a leading international network of independent professional services firms, Grant Thornton meets several times each year with the International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR) and regularly contributes to the public debate on major industry issues.

Grant Thornton's leading role

Grant Thornton's people actively participate in various boards, committees, working groups and forums across a diverse range of bodies and topics, and provide commentary and feedback on the firm's view of planned developments and issues.

External reviews

In keeping with our legislative and regulatory requirements, Grant Thornton is subject to a program of scheduled monitoring of its audit quality, as well as monitoring of compliance with independence rules.

²⁰ Transparency report 2018

Responding to reviews



Risk mitigation

Grant Thornton assesses all risk issues identified through review and monitoring activities, determining appropriate remedial and Improvement Actions (IA) for issues identified.

Results are communicated to the firm's management teams through all levels, up to and including the Board. The results of our quality monitoring and risk assessment programs are used to effectively allocate resources where needed to maintain or improve quality performance.

All compliance breaches are carefully considered on a caseby-case basis and an investigation conducted to determine the impact, extent and reasons the breach occurred, and then the appropriate action to address it.

The goal of our compliance program is to minimise the chance of a breach occurring and mitigate the impact if one does occur.

During the last 12 months, no issues have been raised which we believe have had – or have the potential to result in – a material negative impact on the quality of our statutory audits.

Statement of the firm's internal quality control systems

The Board has ultimate responsibility for Grant Thornton's quality management systems and the establishment of appropriate internal control systems across the firm.

The policies and procedures that serve as the basis for the system of quality management for Grant Thornton Belgium and Grant Thornton Bedrijfsrevisoren are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, or in the case of financial controls, the risk of material misstatement of our financial statements. Accordingly, they provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against such failure or material misstatement.

Through the activities during the year, the Board reviewed:

- The design and operation of the quality management systems as described in this report.
- The findings from regulatory inspections and subsequent follow up and/or remedial actions.
- Reports from the firm's external auditors.
- Reports from Grant Thornton International and various compliance programs operated by our firm on the firm's quality control systems.
- Assessment of the impact of non-compliance on the Partners balance scorecards.

The review by the Board has not identified any failings or weaknesses that it deems to be significant, but identified actions which it believes will strengthen controls to mitigate significant risks. On the basis of the review, the Board is satisfied that the firm's internal quality control systems are operating effectively. In addition, the Board confirms an internal review of our internal independence processes has been conducted during the year.

We continually seek to improve all aspects of our business and use the findings of the practice review, other internal reviews and external regulatory reviews to enhance our system of quality control.

Financial information

| Consolidated turnover | 2018 | 2017 |
|--|------------|------------|
| | 18.476.561 | 18.075.263 |
| Turnover Grant Thornton Bedrijfsrevisoren | 2018 | 2017 |
| Revenue from statutory audits | 4.968.417 | 4.952.827 |
| Revenue from other audit services | 1.130.869 | 1.332.886 |
| Revenue from tax advice | 0 | 0 |
| Other revenue | 1.247.186 | 1.372.453 |
| Total turnover | 7.346.472 | 7.658.166 |
| | | |
| Number of employees | 2018 | 2017 |
| In FTE | 147 | 149 |
| Head count | 156 | 156 |

Public interest entities

The following is a list of Public Interest Entities where we performed statutory audits in the financial year ended December 31, 2018:

- Home Invest Belgium NV (RPR 0420.767.885)
- smartphoto group NV (RPR 0405.706.755)

Contact us

Find out how Grant Thornton can help you unlock the potential for growth in your business.

Antwerp

Potvlietlaan 6 2600 Antwerpen **T** +32 (0)3 235 66 66 **E** antwerp@be.gt.com

Brussels

Medialaan 50 1800 Vilvoorde **T** +32 (0)2 242 11 40 **E** brussels@be.gt.com

Ghent

Oktrooiplein 1 b 601 Quantum Building (6th floor) 9000 Gent **T** +32 (0)9 274 06 06 **E** gent@be.gt.com

Jumet

Rue de Bordeaux 50 b 1 6040 Jumet **T** +32 (0)71 37 65 40 **E** jumet@be.gt.com

Tournai

Rue du Progrès 4B 7503 Tournai (Froyennes) **T** +32 (0)69 84 78 44 **E** tournai@be.gt.com

Turnhout

Parklaan 49 b 7 2300 Turnhout **T** +32 (0)14 47 30 70 **E** turnhout@be.gt.com



An instinct for growth

 \otimes 2019 Grant Thornton Belgium CVBA. All rights reserved.

'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL) and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another's acts or omissions.